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1 DISCLAIMER 

This information memorandum is to introduce the subject matter and provide a 
general idea and information on the said matter. Although, the material included in 
this document is based on data/information gathered from various reliable sources; 
however, it is based upon certain assumptions, which may differ from case to case. 
The information has been provided on as is where is basis without any warranties 
or assertions as to the correctness or soundness thereof. Although, due care and 
diligence has been taken to compile this document, the contained information may 
vary due to any change in any of the concerned factors, and the actual results may 
differ substantially from the presented information. SMEDA, its employees or agents 
do not assume any liability for any financial or other loss resulting from this 
memorandum in consequence of undertaking this activity. The contained 
information does not preclude any further professional advice. The prospective user 
of this memorandum is encouraged to carry out additional diligence and gather any 
information which is necessary for making an informed decision, including taking 
professional advice from a qualified consultant/technical expert before taking any 
decision to act upon the information. 

For more information on services offered by SMEDA, please contact our website: 
www.smeda.org.pk 
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2 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Homemade lunch box service is proposed to be located at metropolitan cities like 
Karachi, Lahore, Islamabad, Peshawar and Quetta, Balochistan. The business will 
deliver healthy and delicious food items to the corporate offices, universities, 
colleges, schools ,Government offices and nongovernmental Organizations 5 days 
a week for a monthly subscription price .Initially starting off with a small subscription 
no of 80 lunch boxes and a simple product mix comprising of only lunch box 
subscription menu but it gradually can build its product mix providing homemade 
frozen food items, party menus, economic menu and only day customized lunch 
boxes. Putting Customer as its  first priority, the business will focus on providing 
high quality homemade hygienic lunch boxes at a affordable price with a delivery 
service.  

During the past decade the fast food businesses, potato chips and different sweet 
and savoring snack as well as hoteling businesses were (still to some extent are) 
on the boom due to the rising demand for these items that arose due to the change 
in lifestyles, corporate jobs and cooking at home being too much time consuming. 
Although the same factors still exist but a niche of the population have realized and 
demand for healthy homemade nutrious food at workplace and home due to 
increasing number of health issues the population is facing attributed mainly to bad 
eating habits like fast and junk food etc.This has given rise to the demand for healthy 
,nutrious food provided at the place of convenience of customer and hence luncch 
box services can exploit this untapped opportunity for this niche which is most like 
to increase in future, due to increased awareness in masses about healthy eating 
and lifestyles. Big companies like Pepsi and coca cola are changing their product 
mix as fast foods and soft drinks do not enjoy the same demand that they used to 
and healthy eating is now becoming more trendy. 

The legal business status of this project is proposed as ‘Sole Proprietorship’. The 
overall proposed production capacity of the plant is 80 Lunch boxes per day and 80 
lunch box service subscriptions prepared and delivererd.The Service will work in 
one shift and operate at 65% capacity in the first year. The maximum capacity 
attained is 95% Total Cost Estimates of the business are  4.96 Million with fixed 
investments of Rs.1.413 Million and working capital of Rs. 3.55 Million.IRR and 
payback of the business are 42% and 4.90 years respectively. 

The most critical considerations or factors for success of the project are: 

The most critical considerations or factors for success of the service are Quality, the 
taste and freshness of the food  provided as customers will prefer tasty and good 
quality food within reasonable pricing. 
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 Continuous availability of local fresh produce and other ingredients to ensure the 
taste ad quality.  

Waste Production should be kept at minimum and production process need to be 
monitored very carefully.  

It is recommended to estimate the all fresh produce and meat ,flour and other pantry 
requirements of the kitchen for the year and this should be contracted for in advance 
with the suppliers so as to secure from the drastic changes in the prices.  

Quality maintenance will play an important role as it is evident from the behavior of 
the general consumers that they are more specific towards health issues than ever 
before. 

Marketing through social media, asking customers to spread the word to others and 
building customers will play an important role in the success of the business. 

Home Made Food Products are recommended to be established in their homes by 
people living within city residential areas considering other mandatory inputs i.e. 
availability of human resource, utilities and easy delivery etc. 

Online order booking and sale through whatsapp and facebook pages will be an 
innovation and will not only facilitate customer , boost sales along with media 
exposure of the business but also will reduce cost of taking orders by delivery boys 
going to the offices, schools and colleges itself.
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3 INTRODUCTION TO SMEDA 

The Small and Medium Enterprises Development Authority (SMEDA) was 
established in October 1998 with an objective to provide fresh impetus to the 
economy through development of Small and Medium Enterprises (SMEs).  

With a mission "to assist in employment generation and value addition to the 
national income, through development of the SME sector, by helping increase the 
number, scale and competitiveness of SMEs", SMEDA has carried out ‘sectoral 
research’ to identify policy, access to finance, business development services, 
strategic initiatives and institutional collaboration and networking initiatives.  

Preparation and dissemination of prefeasibility studies in key areas of investment 
has been a successful hallmark of SME facilitation by SMEDA.  

Concurrent to the prefeasibility studies, a broad spectrum of business development 
services is also offered to the SMEs by SMEDA. These services include 
identification of experts and consultants and delivery of need based capacity 
building programs of different types in addition to business guidance through help 
desk services. 

 

4 PURPOSE OF THE DOCUMENT 

The objective of the pre-feasibility study is primarily to facilitate potential 
entrepreneurs in project identification for investment. The project pre-feasibility may 
form the basis of an important investment decision and in order to serve this 
objective, the document/study covers various aspects of project concept 
development, start-up, and production, marketing, finance and business 
management.   

The purpose of this document is to facilitate potential investors Homemade Lunch 
Box Delivery Service by providing them with a general understanding of the 
business with the intention of supporting potential investors in crucial investment 
decisions. 

The need to come up with pre-feasibility reports for undocumented or minimally 
documented sectors attains greater imminence as the research that precedes such 
reports reveal certain thumb rules; best practices developed by existing enterprises 
by trial and error, and certain industrial norms that become a guiding source 
regarding various aspects of business set-up and it’s successful management. 

Apart from carefully studying the whole document one must consider critical aspects 
provided later on, which form basis of any Investment Decision. 
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5 BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT & PRODUCT 

Homemade lunch box service is proposed to be located at metropolitan cities like 
Karachi, Lahore, Islamabad, Peshawar and Quetta, Balochistan. The business will 
deliver healthy and delicious food items to the corporate offices, universities, 
colleges, schools ,Government offices and nongovernmental Organizations 5 days 
a week for a monthly subscription price .Initially starting off with a small subscription 
no of 80 lunch boxes and a simple product mix comprising of only lunch box 
subscription menu it gradually can build its product mix providing homemade frozen 
food items, party menus, economic menu and only day customized lunch boxes. 
Putting Customer as its  first priority, the business will focus on providing high quality 
homemade hygienic lunch boxes at a affordable price with a delivery service. 
Installed capacity of the business is 80 lunch box subscription per month and initial 
utilization of 65%. 

Following key parameters must be addressed as per pre-feasibility study under 
preparation  

• Technology: The proposed project is about Homemade lunch box service. 
Putting customer as its first priority, the business will focus on providing high 
quality homemade hygienic lunch boxes at a affordable price with a delivery 
service for a monthly subscription price of Rs.3300.Its processing for the 
provided menu for the month includes dough making for chapatti and cooking 
them, preparing ingredients for the main dish for the day, raita or salad that will 
be served with the dish and cooking them keeping, hygiene and nutrition as a 
top priority. The entire process flow is suggested to be manual requiring skilled 
cooks, helpers, cleaners and serving workers. using specialised cooking pots 
and pans, tools and recipe and process for large scale cooking. The delivery of 
the  

• Location:The business is proposed to be located within the city residential areas 
while considering other mandatory inputs i.e. availability of human resource, 
utilities and easy delivery etc. 

• Product: The business initially will only deliver lunch boxes for a monthly 
subscription price consisting of a fixed menu communicated earlier but it 
gradually can build its product mix providing homemade frozen food items, party 
menus, economic menu and only day customized lunch boxes. 

The menu catered is as follows: 
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Menu Week 1  Week 2 Week 3 

Week day 1 Chicken  Biryani  Fried Salmon Fish Chicken Karai 

Week day 2 Aloo Anday  Shami Kabab (3 pcs)   Mix Vegetable 

Week day 3 Baingan Ka Burta Matar Pulao Dal Chawal 

Week day 4 Beef Karai Alo Palak Achari Alu Bhujia 

Week day 5 Dall Mash Fry Dall chana White chana  

Chapatti will be served 16 days of the month with the appropriate dishes as 4 
days of the month there are rice dishes. The dishes will be served according to 
the dish served with salad and raita 8 and 12 days of the month respectively. 

• Target Market: The business will deliver healthy and delicious food items to the 
corporate offices, universities, colleges, schools ,Government offices and 
nongovernmental Organizations 5 days a week for a monthly subscription price 

• Employment Generation: The proposed project will provide direct 
employment to 12 people. Financial analysis shows the unit shall be  profitable 
from the very 2nd year of operation. 

5.1 Production Process Flow  

5.1.1 Subscription and Sharing Menu: 
The first step of the customer subscription, the member will be provided with the 
menu and the manager will save the contact details, add them in a whats’app group 
and take their delivery address. 

5.1.2 Confirming orders: 
The number of lunch boxes prepared will be according to the monthly subscription 
purchased by the members. In case, any member does not want delivery on a day 
must be ensured by the manager and be communicated to the kitchen. 

5.1.3 Fresh produce and pantry ingredients purchase: 
The monthly estimates of the kitchen pantry will be calculated and will be purchased 
in bulk for the whole month from specific suppliers. The fresh produce will be 
purchased from local produce market and will be delivered on daily basis .Meat and 
dairy will be purchased according to the daily requirements of the menu as well. 
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5.1.4 Preparation : 
The produce, meat and dairy preparation will start early each morning by the kitchen 
helpers and the utensils required will be prepares as well as the ingredients required 
will be weighted out for cooking. 

5.1.5 Cooking: 
In order to provide fresh lunch to members the cooking will start just in time to be 
prepared for lunch time. 

5.1.6 Packing lunch boxes: 
All lunch boxes them will be packed by serving working by weighting them out 
carefully and the addresses will be punched on them by the manager ready to be 
delivered. 

5.1.7 Delivery: 
Dividing the delivery addresses of the members in to 4 delivery boys, the lunches 
will be given to the delivery workers according to specific locations assigned to them. 
The monthly subscription payment will be received by these delivery workers from 
their assigned members to be paid to the accountant on monthly basis. 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5.2 Installed and Operational Capacities 

The service will in the first year cater to 20,880 Subscriptions working at a capacity 
utilization of 65% with increase of 5% per year will cap at 95 %. 
6 CRITICAL FACTORS 

An analysis of the Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities and Threats is detailed 
as follows:  
Strengths:  

Subscription 
 

Order 
confirmation Purchase Preparation 

Cook Prepare Delivery & 
Payment 
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• Availability of raw material  
• Need no expensive rental space or extra construction cost  
• Little competition in home based food products. 
• High reliability on quality of homemade food products 
• Capacity to enhance product line & profitability  
• E-business  

 
Weaknesses:   

• Business expansion may be difficult at home.  
• Limited production capacity. 
• Home may not be a good sale point/outlet  

 
Opportunities:  

• Increasing demand of hygienically, healthy and nutrious homemade food.  
• High demand of lunch boxes throughout the year with exceptionally high. 
• Free home delivery service & online order & sales  

 
Threats:  

• Poor hygiene. 
• No use of local fresh seasonal produce. 
• Strong competition from the fast food and other restaurants. 
• Timely delivery & sale is vital to maintain quality 
 

7 GEOGRAPHICAL POTENTIAL FOR INVESTMENT 

Homemade lunch box service is proposed to be located at metropolitan cities like 
Karachi, Lahore, Islamabad, Peshawar and Quetta, Balochistan. The business will 
deliver healthy and delicious food items to the corporate offices, universities, 
colleges, schools ,Government offices and nongovernmental Organizations 5 days 
a week for a monthly subscription price while considering other mandatory inputs 
i.e. availability of human resource and utilities etc.  
 
 
8 POTENTIAL TARGET CUSTOMERS / MARKETS 

Middle-income groups with working in offices, universities,college and schools etc 
also student who take long hour classes at these institutions. living in metropolitan 
cities like Quetta, Karachi, Lahore, KPK and Islamabad .The online booking and free 
delivery service will help capture its market share in little time. 
 
9 PROJECT COST SUMMARY 
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9.1 Project Economics 

All the figures in this financial model have been calculated for estimated sales of 
Rs.42.92 million in the year one. The capacity utilization during year one is worked 
out at 65% with 5% increase in subsequent years up to the maximum capacity 
utilization of 95%. 

The following table shows internal rate of return, payback period and net present 
value of the proposed venture. 

Table 1: Project Economics 

Description Details 

 Internal Rate of Return (IRR)  42% 

 Payback Period (yrs.)  4.99 

Net Present Value (Rs.) 31,407,451 

 

9.2 Project Financing 

 
Following table provides details of the equity required and variables related to bank 
loan; 

Table 2: Project Financing 

Description Details 

Total Equity (50%) Rs.1.413 Million  

Bank Loan (50%) Rs. 3.553million 

Markup to the Borrower (%age / annum) 14% 

Tenure of the Loan (Years) 5 
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9.3 Project Cost 

Following fixed and working capital requirements have been identified for operations 
of the proposed business.  

Table 3: Project Cost 

Capital Cost    Rs. in actuals  

   Building/Infrastructure  576,000 

   Machinery & equipment  339,124 

 Furniture & fixtures  132,700 

 Office vehicles  200,850 

 Office equipment  125,000 

 Pre-operating costs  40,000 

 Total Capital Costs  1,413,674 

 Working Capital  
 

 Raw material inventory  3,183,883 

 Upfront building rent  249,600 

 Upfront insurance payment  26,999 

 Cash    94,085 

 Total Working Capital  3,554,567 

 Total Investment  4,968,241 

 

9.4 Space Requirement 

The space requirement for the proposed is estimated considering various facilities 
including management office, production hall, storage, open space, etc. Details of 
space requirement and cost related to land & building is given below; 

Table 4: Space Requirment 

Description Estimated Area 
(Sqft) 

Unit Cost 
(Rs.) 

Total Cost 
(Rs.) 

Kitchen area 256 1200 307200 

Pantry  96 1200 115200 

Management Cabin  64 1200 76800 

Pavement and driveway 96 800 76800 

Total   576,000 
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The rent for the service will be 20800 per month and the civil works will require 1 
month to be completed. 

9.5 Machinery & Equipment Requirement 

Plant, machinery and equipment for the proposed project are stated below.  
Table 5: Machinery & Equipment 

Description  Quantity Unit Cost  
(Rs.) 

Total Cost 
(Rs.) 

Large pots  4 6,000                       
24,000  

 Large skillets  4 6,000                       
24,000  

 Chef Knife  12 167                         
2,004  

 Large Pressure Cookers  4 1,600                         
6,400  

 Steel Buckets  8 1,200                         
9,600  

 Tea, Table & serving  12 200                         
2,400  

 Hand blender  2 4,500                         
9,000  

 chopper  2 5,000                       
10,000  

 Grinder  2 5,000                       
10,000  

 Gas burners  6 6,000                       
36,000  

 Large Tawas  2 4,000                         
8,000  

 Deep Freezer  1 35,000                       
35,000  

 Refrigerator  2 40,000                       
80,000  

 Large Plastic bottles   8 250                         
2,000  
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 Containers for Pantry s  12 80                            
960  

 Containers for Pantry M  12 180                         
2,160  

 Containers for Pantry L  8 600                         
4,800  

 re useable lunch boxes  240 120                       
28,800  

 UPS  1 35,000                       
35,000  

 Misc  1 5,000                         
5,000  

 large spoons  8 500                         
4,000  

 Total                       
339,124  

 
 

9.6 Furniture & Fixtures Requirement 

Details of the furniture and fixture required for the project are given below;  
Table 6: Furniture & Fixture 

Description Quantity Unit Cost 
(Rs.) 

Total Cost 
(Rs.) 

Office Tables 2.5x4  1 6,000                        
6,000  

 Office Chairs  1 4,000                        
4,000  

 Visitors Chairs  2 2,500                        
5,000  

 Work Shop Chairs  8 1,500                      
12,000  

 Energy Savers  12 200                        
2,400  
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 Fans  4 3,000                      
12,000  

 Exhaust Fans  3 3,000                        
9,000  

 Total Furniture & Fixtures                       
50,400  

 

9.7 Office Equipment Requirement 

Following office equipment will be required for the Lunch box service business: 
 

Table 7: Office Equipment 

Description Quantity Unit Cost 
(Rs.) 

Total Cost 
(Rs.) 

Laptops  1 65,000                      
65,000  

 Computer printer (s)  1 25,000                      
25,000  

 Telephones  1 5,000                        
5,000  

 Misc  1 30,000                      
30,000  

 Total Office Equipment                       
125,000  

 

9.8 Human Resource Requirement 

In order to run operations of Lunch box service smoothly, details of human 
resources required along with number of employees and monthly salary are 
recommended as under;  
 

Table 8: Human Resource Requirment 

Description No. of Employees Monthly Salary 
per person (Rs.) 
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Cooks 2 35000 

Helpers and servers 2 20000 

Cleaners and dish Washers 2 18000 

Manager 1 50000 

Accountant 1 40000 

Delivery Boys 4 18000 

   
 

9.9 Utilities and other costs 

An essential cost to be borne by the project is the cost of electricity and gas. The 
electricity expenses are estimated to be around Rs. 35000 per month, whereas, gas 
expenses are estimated to be Rs. 40000 month (including both natural gas and 
LPG). Furthermore, promotional expense being essential for marketing of service is 
estimated as 0.5% of revenue. 

9.10 Revenue Generation 

Based on the capacity utilization of, sales revenue during the first year of operations 
is estimated as under;  
 
 

Table 9: Revenue Generation – Year 1 

Description No. of Units 
Produced (No.) 

Sale Price / 
unit (Rs.) 

Sales 
Revenue (Rs.) 

Lunch box Service 20880 3300 42.92 Million 

Total    
 
 
 
10 CONTACT DETAILS 

In order to facilitate potential investors, contact details of private sector Service 
Providers relevant to the proposed project be given. 

10.1 Raw Material Suppliers 

Name of Supplier Address Phone Fax E-mail Website 
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Whole sellers & 
departmental 
stores 

All Over 
Pakistan. 

  
  

 

10.2 Technical Experts / Consultants  

Name of 
Expert/Organization 

Address Phone Fax E-mail Website 

Delicia Foods 

House n0 
235-B, 
Jinnah 
Town, 
Quetta 

03333665182  
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11 USEFUL WEB LINKS 

 
Small & Medium Enterprises Development Authority 
(SMEDA) 

www.smeda.org.pk  

Government of Pakistan www.pakistan.gov.pk  

Ministry of Industries & Production www.moip.gov.pk 

Ministry of Education, Training & Standards in Higher 
Education 

http://moptt.gov.pk 

Government of Punjab www.punjab.gov.pk 

Government of Sindh www.sindh.gov.pk 

Government of Khyber Pakhtunkhwa www.khyberpakhtunkhwa.gov.pk 

Government of Balochistan www.balochistan.gov.pk 

Government of Gilgit Baltistan www.gilgitbaltistan.gov.pk 

Government of Azad Jamu Kashmir www.ajk.gov.pk  

Trade Development Authority of Pakistan (TDAP) www.tdap.gov.pk  

Security Commission of Pakistan (SECP) www.secp.gov.pk 

Federation of Pakistan Chambers of Commerce and 
Industry (FPCCI) 

www.fpcci.com.pk 

State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) www.sbp.org.pk 

Punjab Small Industries Corporation www.psic.gop.pk  
Sindh Small Industries Corporation www.ssic.gos.pk  
Pakistan Horticulture Development and Export Company 
(PHDEC) 

www.phdec.org.pk  

Punjab Vocational Training Council (PVTC) www.pvtc.gop.pk  
Technical Education and Vocational Training Authority 
(TEVTA) 

www.tevta.org  

Pakistan Readymade Garment Technical Training 
Institute 

www.prgmea.org/prgtti/  

Livestock & Dairy Development Department, Government 
of Punjab. 

www.livestockpunjab.gov.pk  

Punjab Industrial Estates (PIE) www.pie.com.pk 
Faisalabad Industrial Estate Development and 
Management Company (FIEDMC)  

www.fiedmc.com.pk  
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12 ANNEXURES 

12.1 Income Statement 
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12.2 Balance Sheet 
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12.3 Cash Flow Statement 
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13 KEY ASSUMPTIONS 

13.1 Cash Flow Assumptions 

Description Details 

Accounts Receivable Cycle (In days) 30 
Accounts Payable Cycle (In days) 30 
  

 

13.2 Revenue Assumptions 

Description Details 

Sale Price Per Unit Rs. 3300 
Growth in Sales Price 10% 
Maximum units Produced in Year 1  20880 Subscriptions  

 

13.3 Financial Assumptions 

Description Details 

Debt 50 
Equity 50 
Interest Rate On Debt 14 
Debt Tenure 5 
  

 
 
 
 
 


